

## **Purchase Orders**

# Manual

dk Software | Tel. +44 1208 560000 | Email. support@dksoftware.co.uk | www.dksoftware.co.uk



### Contents

Introduction	3
Getting Started	3
Purchase orders	5
Creating a purchase order	5
Options in the F5 Menu	6
Item reception	6
Creating item reception	6
Posting item reception to GL or accounts payable	7
Join item reception	8
Purchase order suggestions	8
Inquiries	9
Reports	10
Purchase manager	10
Purchase order analysis	10
Setup	11



#### Introduction

This manual is one of several instructions manuals for the dk Business Solutions system.

The user interface of dk Business Solutions is entirely graphical. This has the advantage that multiple and unrelated windows can be opened simultaneously and the data can be viewed from different angles. The same window can even be opened repeatedly, using different selections to view the same information.

The dk main menu is located in the middle of the screen and is split in two. The left hand side contains the basic modules, such as General ledger, Accounts receivable, Accounts payable, Sales, Inventory, Purchase orders, Projects and General. On the right hand side you see the sub processes of each module and that half is structured as a tree, in the same manner as "Windows Explorer", for example, where you simply click the '+' to expand the branches.

This manual covers the use of the Purchase Orders module. It is intended to give insight into how the Purchase Orders module is constructed and managed on a daily basis. Specialised accounting knowledge is not required in order to use the manual.

#### **Getting Started**

The purchase order part of the system is where you manage your purchase orders and item reception. The module is fully integrated with other dk modules and is where you register your new stock and purchase prices as well as vendor invoices. Before you start using the purchase order module it is important to configure the necessary settings.

#### Please note that if this has been set up by a dk representative during implementation you should be careful not to touch this without consulting them first.

The first thing to configure is what happens when you transfer a purchase order over to item reception. There are three settings available.

- 1. The purchase order lines remain unchanged when transferred to item reception.
- 2. Purchase order lines are deleted according to quantity delivered.
- 3. Purchase order line is deleted when transferred over.

The most common setting is option two where the delivered quantity is removed from the purchase order and added to an item reception. This means that you can still process the vendor invoice even though you



3



haven't received all the goods. Later you are also able to merge purchase orders into a single item reception according to what is on the vendor invoice. This will be covered later in this manual under the chapter Join item reception.

You have got two options when it comes to posting quantities into the inventory. The first one is to post stock quantities when a purchase order is transferred to item reception. This will allow you to post the quantities into inventory when you receive the goods even though you haven't received the invoice at that stage. If you receive the invoice at the same time as the goods are delivered, you might use the second option which is to post quantities when the item reception, and at the same time, vendor invoice is posted.

Finally, you are able to determine how the vendor invoice is posted to the General Ledger. You can choose between the invoice being posted directly to the General Ledger or stopping in the Accounts Payable module on the way to the General Ledger. Which option you choose will generally depend on your office environment and structure.

Company setup	x
Purchase orders Purchase orders (2) Purchase order printing Pri	Þ
<ul> <li>Enter vendor item code in line</li> <li>Enter reference in line</li> <li>Enter total weight of item in line</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>Post vendor invoice directly to General Ledger</li> <li>Print goods received note when posting</li> </ul>	
<ul> <li>Update inventory when transferring PO to Item reception</li> <li>Allow posting of inventory quantity without updating</li> </ul>	
- Catalian	



#### **Purchase orders**

The Purchase Orders module represents the goods inward process of an organisation where a purchase order is raised and sent to a supplier and then when the goods are received they go through the item reception and finally end up as a vendor invoice and is posted either straight into the General Ledger or with a stopover in the Accounts Payable module. This process will be described step-by-step in the following sections.

#### Creating a purchase order

To create a purchase select *Purchase orders* at the top of the menu and you will see a grid with all the unposted purchase orders in the system. Click on **INS New** and the following window will appear.

🐵 Purchase d	order no.	11										×
General inform	mation   T	ransporter   Receiver	Texts   Miscellaneous   Inscrip	tions								
Number:	0002	Adidas		Date:	15.0	9.2011						
Address:	1 Adidas	Road		Requested a	Requested arrival: 22.09.2011							
	London			Confirmed ar	rival: 🗔							
				Purch, mana	ger:	•						
Zip code:	AD1 2AS	_										
Country:				Reference:		•						
Contact:				Status:	In p	rocess	•					
>> Item code		Vendor item code	Description	Purch. quanti	Quantity	Purch. quantity	Qty delivered	Purchase price	Purch. amoun	t Cost price	Cost amount	
B025			Adidas DB Socks - Size 4-7	10,00	10,00	10,00	10,00	17,000000	170,00	4,00	40,00	
B013			Adidas David Beckham Shorts - Sı	5,00	5,00	5,00	5,00	8,000000	40,00	8,00	40,00	
												-
											•	Ŧ
On hand:		0 Purchase am	ount: 210,00 0	Cost amount:		80,00						
F1 Help	F	2 Browse <b>FS</b>	Menu INS New EN	T Modify	DEL Delete	ESC Exit	F12 Save	•				
3:2												11.

Entering a purchase order is very similar to entering sales invoices, orders and quotes. On the top left hand corner of the screen you will find the contact information of your vendor. If you press F2 on your keyboard or F2 Browse on the window you will get a list of all your vendors. Select one of them and press enter. This will fill up the number field with his number and if you press enter again it will fill out all the other information on this particular vendor.

You will have to enter a date for the purchase order and if you are using purchase managers you have to enter that field or it can be skipped completely depending on the setup.

Other options in the header of the screen include receiver which can be used if the vendor operates in multiple locations.

Once you have entered all the required information in the header you are ready to start entering the products in the lines. If you are entering a product that has not previously been registered in dk you will have to start by creating a new item in the inventory module. Otherwise you simply choose the product, quantity and purchase price in the lines. Ones you are happy that all your products are on the order you can save the purchase order until the items are received.

The next section explains how to register items on reception.



#### **Options in the F5 Menu**

There are several options for printing and sending the purchase orders by email in the F5 Menu. There is also an option there where you can send a purchase order to item reception. Depending on your setup configurations, the received products can be registered in your inventory at this point in time or alternatively when the item reception is posted. If you choose to send purchase order to Item reception a new item reception will be created and will appear in the section Item reception. Here you are

Se	lection - Transfer		23	
ſ	Purchase order - Inventory r	registration		
	Line transfer order			
	Entering order		-	
	Merge with item reception			
	Item reception:			
	Merge lines with ide	lumber	/endor	~
-			0004	
	F1 Help F12 (			

	Print purchase order Print preview Print document	F7	rence: s:	In pr	ocess
	Send by email		quanti Qu	antity	Purch, quan
3	Send purchase order to		Item	reception	
	Cancel purchase order		Inver	ntory regis	tration
9	Item information tree	F8			
3	Text with line	Ctrl+I			
	Totals				
	Update purchase- and co	st price			
	Working in lines	F6	sunt:		80,00
	Setup		fy DEL	Delete	ESC Exit

also able to merge purchase orders from the same vendor onto one item reception. When you select the option to send to item reception the following window will appear.

#### Item reception

The item reception is where register your products into the inventory once they are received. The actual registration of goods into your inventory can also happen at the point in time when the purchase order is transferred over to item reception. Depending on your settings, the item reception can be either posted directly into the general ledger and become the vendor invoice, or it will be sent into the accounts payable module where it will appear as a vendor invoice and can be found in accounts payable > register invoices.

#### **Creating item reception**

To create an item reception you can either transfer a purchase order over to item reception or you can simply enter directly into the item reception part of the system found under the heading Item reception. When you open the item reception you will get a grid showing all your unposted item receptions. To create a new item reception press **INS New** and the following window will appear.

		tion [	[19]											
Ge	neral Cos	at   T	exts											
Ve	ndor:		0002	··· Adidas				Reg. VAT:						
Ca	untry:							Type:	D	Debit		Ŧ		
[nı	/oice:		12345					Curr.:	G	BP ·	1,0000000	Ŧ		
Reference:							Amount (foreign):			252,00	Ŧ			
Invoice date: 22.9.2011 -			▼ Due date	: 20.10	.2011	•	Amount:			252,00	•			
·				Received	: 20.10	.2011	•	Total cost:			0,00	Ŧ		
Te	xt:		Purchase order	Adidas 09.2011				Cost price rate:			1,00000000	Ŧ		
	Туре	In	🔍 Item code	Text		Purch	Qty	Purchase price	Purchase	am	Customs	Cost price Cost amount		Item location
	1.		0.005	Adidas DB Socks - Size 4-7 10.00				10,00 17,000000			0,00 0			
		Adidas DB Soc	ks - Size 4-7	10,00	10,0	00 17,000000	1	70,00	0,00	17,00	) 170,00			
>	Items		B025 B013	Adidas DB Soc Adidas David B						70,00 40,00	0,00 0,00	17,00 8,00		
>							5,1	8,00000						
		1: 29.			eckham Shoi	5,00	5,1		2.	40,00	0,00	8,00	) 40,00	252,0
.as	Items	1: 29.	B013	Adidas David B	eckham Shoi	5,00	5,1	00 8,000000	2. 8,00 Lii	40,00	0,00 0,00	210,00	210,00	
.as	Items	: 29.	B013	Adidas David B	eckham Shoi	5,00	5,1 15,0 Cost pr	00 8,000000	2. 8,00 Lii	40,00 10,00	0,00 0,00	210,00	) 40,00 210,00 Amount (foreign):	
.as .as	Items It purchased	1: 29.	B013 .11.2010 8,000000	Adidas David B Vend. list price: Agreed disc.:	eckham Shoi	5,00 15,00 ,000000 0,00 %	5,1 15,0 Cost pr	00 8,000000	2- 8,00 Lii 1,9100 VA	40,00 10,00 ine tota /AT lines	0,00 0,00	8,00 210,00 42,00	) 40,00 210,00 Amount (foreign):	T): 252,0
.as .as	Items it purchased it price: it discount:		B013 .11.2010 8,000000 0,00 %	Adidas David B Vend. list price: Agreed disc.: Unit quantity:	eckham Shoi	5,00 15,00 ,000000 0,00 % 0,00	5,1 15,0 Cost pr Price 1	00 8,000000	2- 8,00 Lii 1,9100 VA	40,00 10,00 ine tota AT lines	0,00 0,00	8,00 210,00 42,00	1 40,00 210,00 Amount (foreign): Line total (incl.VA	T): 252,0 0,0



When creating a new item reception, the first thing you must do is to select the vendor. Then in the field labelled *invoice* you enter the vendor invoice number. Then you must also enter a descriptive text for the item reception that will be the description of your vendor invoice. Then you fill in the date fields and enter the total amount of the invoice. This concludes what needs to be done in the configuration of the header. Now you are ready to start entering the items in the lines.

The first column of the item reception asks you to specify a type, this can be either an item or cost. Please not that only stock items are entered through the item reception while service items will have to be entered through the accounts payable module or the general ledger journal.

Enter your products in the lines and specify their prices. You will see in the footer of the window the total amounts and VAT on the lines so you can run it against the hard copy of the vendor invoice to ensure it matches. When you have entered all your items on an item reception you are ready to post it to the general ledger or the accounts payable module.



#### Posting item reception to GL or accounts payable

The next step is to post an item reception into the GL or accounts payable module. To do this you have to go into the **F5 Menu** where several options are available. Before you post an invoice it must be checked. If the error check shows that the invoice is correct, the option to post the invoice becomes active and you can post it to the general ledger or accounts payable module. There are a number of other useful options in the F5 Menu:

**Copy.** This option copies an item reception. You can also utilize this option once the item reception has been posted and if you wish to place a similar order again.

**Copy over to credit.** If you wish to reverse a posted item reception you can select this option and it will create a new one that can be found in the item reception grid as unposted.

**Merge item receptions.** Only use this option if you are working with item receptions where the stock quantities have not been posted to the inventory. If you have already posted the stock quantities, i.e. the lines have a yellow lock in front, you need to use the Join item reception which is explained in the next chapter.

Other options are where you can print the invoice or get a print preview, run an information tree and add a text with line.

Purchase order suggestions	×
Purchase order suggestions This process creates purchase order suggestions for selected vendors. Please note that order quar will never exceed the maximum order	itity
Vendor: Only products where the vendor is linem group: as the primary vendor.	sted
Minimum quantity	
Include     Include     Include     Include     Include     Sales orders     Substance from minimum     Quantity variance from minimum     Vorur ( solupiontun	
Period for sales history      Period 1:     Period 2:     Period 2:     Period 2:     Period 3:     Period 3:	
C Item purchase quantity / Last ordered C Up to maximum C Use quantity from sales history C Order to minimum C Panta magn frá sölusrögu - birgåastaða	
F1 Help F12 Confirm ESC C.	ancel



#### Join item reception

This process allows you to merge together a number of items from different item receptions, for example when you have received a number of part deliveries and entered them on to different item receptions but the invoice contains all of the items, you are able to specify it in this process and create a single item reception for that invoice.

۵۵	lerge item	receptio	ns																	
Ven	dor: 0003			he Bo	iok Company		Date:	01/04/2011	• 08	/11/2012	•									
Dra	ig a column	ı header h	ere lo grou	ıp by	that column															
=	🔍 Item	📴 Purc.	Type		🖪 Item code	Text			Purch	Transf	Qty	Purchase price	Purchase am	Customs	Purchase price	Cost price	Cost amount			
	25		0 Items		B023	Milton's	Paradise Los	at	5.00	5.00	5.00	15.000000	75.00	0.00	15.000000	15.00	75.00			
	31		0 Items	_	B019	Statues			6.00	0.00	6.00	17.000000	102.00	0.00	17.000000	17.00	102.00			
	31		0 Items	6	Create item reception	n i	Ctrl+Q	es	7.00	7.00	7.00	17.000000	119.00	0.00	17.000000	17.00	119.00			
₽	31		0 Items	æ	Refresh item receptio	n lines	Ctrl+R		7.00	7.00	7.00	15.000000	105.00	0.00	15.000000	15.00	105.00			
				÷	Put same quantity to	all lines	Ctrl+M		25.00	19.00	25.00	64.000000	401.00	0.00	64.000000	64.00	401.00			
	F1 Help	F2 B	rowse		Undo same quantity		es Ctrl+D	ESC Exit												
4:4																				
																	dkMain	Admin	POSDEMO	08/11/2012 17:22:1

When you open up the Join item reception process you will get a table asking you to specify a vendor and a date range. When you have entered the desired information you will see all the lines from the item receptions that exist for the chosen criteria. To merge different lines together you must enter the number of items you wish to merge in the 'transfer quantity' column. Once you have entered all the desired quantities you can go to the F5 Menu and select Create item reception. This will create a single item reception based on how many lines you wish to join together and can be found in the item reception grid where you can continue with posting it to the General Ledger or the Accounts Payable module as normal.

#### **Purchase order suggestions**

The purchase order suggestions process can make the re-ordering process significantly faster. When you open up the process you will see a screen containing all the previous purchase order suggestion if the process has been run before. If you are running the process for the first time the grid will be empty until you have run the process. To create the purchase order suggestions select INS New at the bottom of the screen and the following window will appear.



This window allows you to select your criteria for running the process. You can run the process based on vendor/s, item groups or item codes as well as determine whether to base the suggested ordered quantities on last order quantities, up to maximum, order to minimum etc.

Once you have configured all the required criteria for running the process you press F12 Confirm and the screen will be generated by purchase order suggestions based on that criteria. You can then decide whether or not to use the suggested orders or alternatively you can amend them at either the suggestion stage or once you have created your purchase orders based on the suggestions.

To create an order from suggestion you open up the suggested order and select 'Transfer to purchase order' from the F5 Menu.



This will generate the order in the purchase orders grid at the top of the module.

	e Food Comp												
0004 T	'he Food Comp	any											
Description	Item group	Purch. quantity	Quantity	On hand	On sales order	On order	In item rece	Minimum stock	Maximum on	Purcha -			
Apple Juice 33	ColdDr	100.00	100.00	200.00	0.00	100.00	0.00	0.00	0.00				
Tropical Juice	ColdDr	100.00	100.00	198.00	0.00	100.00	0.00	0.00	0.00				
Still Water 50c	ColdDr	100.00	100.00	199.00	0.00	100.00	0.00	0.00	0.00				
Sparkling Wate	ColdDr	100.00	100.00	199.00	0.00	100.00	0.00	0.00	0.00				
Mars bar	Food	30.00	30.00	58.00	0.00	30.00	0.00	0.00	0.00				
Snickers bar	Food	30.00	30.00	58.00	0.00	30.00	0.00	0.00	0.00				
Twix bar	Food	20.00	20.00	43.00	0.00	30.00	0.00	0.00	0.00				
Butter Croissar	Food	50.00	50.00	99.00	0.00	50.00	0.00	0.00	0.00				
				I						•			
Transfer 1	to purchase o	rder											
Print pur Informati	chase order ion tree		Las	Last sale data / / 0.00									
Sales info Vendor in	ormation Information tre		7-9 month 0.0	0	10-12 month 0	.00							
Numbers	rejected whe	n created	INS New	ENT Ch	ange DEL D	elete ESC	Exit F12	Save					

The previous sections about the Purchase Orders and Item reception process deals with how they are created and posted. The next part of this manual deals with inquiries, reports and analysis which can help you get a clearer view of your activities within the Purchase Orders module.

#### Inquiries

As with other dk Business Solutions modules, the powerful inquiry grids are one of the strongest



parts of the system. There are five inquiries you can select from in this module and this section features a brief introduction onto each one of them.

**Purchase order lines:** This inquiry will show you all the purchase order lines that exist in the purchase order grid. You

can select it by vendor or alternatively mark the vendor field with an asterisk '\*' to get information on all your vendors.

**Sales order lines:** Shows you all the items that are on sales orders. For the ones that are listed but of which you don't have any in stock, you can create a purchase order directly from there. A more useful alternative to this inquiry can be found in the Sales module under Sales orders > F5 Menu > Report: Purchase Needs which will give you all the quantities you need to buy in order to fulfil the sales orders.

**Posted item reception:** Shows you all the posted item receptions for a particular vendor or vendors. You can open each item reception to view the specifics or you can see it at the bottom of the screen which lists all the lines.

**Posted item reception lines:** Here you are able to view all the item reception lines for a vendor or vendors.

**Received purchase orders:** This is where you can view all the received purchase orders, i.e. the purchase orders that have been transferred to item reception/vendor invoice.



#### Reports

As well as having a number of powerful inquiries, the purchase orders module is equipped with a



number of standard reports. The four reports available in the module are Orders list, Order catalogue, Order catalogue with sales history and Status report. The four reports will be described briefly below.

Orders list: This report shows you all the orders you have got on in the purchase order grid.

**Order catalogue:** This report shows you the order catalogue as it stands. It lists the quantities on hand and the movements in the previous periods.

**Order catalogue with sales history:** This report does exactly the same as the order catalogue while also showing the sales history for the items in question.

**Status report:** The status report is a powerful report that shows you the stock quantities at a selected point in time. It shows you the quantities on hand, in sales/purchase order, item reception, WOP and the sales to date by specified periods. This report can also be used as a reorder report.

#### **Purchase manager**

If your organisation is using purchase managers, this is where you would manage them. This would be specified during the dk setup so if you are not sure whether this is configured or not, please contact a dk representative to clarify. The purchase manager indicates the person responsible for the organisations' purchasing, either for the whole organisation or specific warehouses.

When you open up the purchase manager table you have to INS New at the bottom of the screen and create a purchase manager linked to an employee. You can set up more than one purchase manager for a specific function or warehouse.

#### **Purchase order analysis**

The purchase orders analysis is a powerful analytical function. It shows you the purchase and sales

Purchase analysis	<b>X</b>
Choose period and r	nalysis - analysis tree number to divide within the period. the analysis by period, vendor or
Period: Criteria date:	Months ▼ 08/11/2012 To the end Nov - 30/11/2012
Breakdown by • Vendors	C Purchasing managers
Vendor:	
Vendor group: Purch. manager:	
Use current co	st price if cost price on purchase transactions is
F1 Help F12	Confirm F10 Clear ESC Cancel

figures for your selected items broken down by either vendors or purchasing manager. You are able to further specify your criteria based on dates broken down on months, weeks, years etc. Finally you are able to run it for all vendors, vendor groups or purchase managers or the ones you specify.



Once you have pressed F12 Confirm the purchase order analysis is run. This will generate a screen listing sales and purchase quantities broken down as per your chosen criteria. This screen can then be graphed to screen or exported to Excel.

🛞 Purchase order analysis - Vendors															
Purchase order analysis															
Period from: 30.04.2011 to: 30.09.2011															
Vendor: 0002	01.0	09.2011 · 30.09	.2011	01.	08.2011 - 31.0	8.2011	01.	07.2011 • 31.0	7.2011	01.	06.2011 - 30.0	6.2011	01.	05.2011 - 31.0	5.2011
Items	Quantity	Costs	Average c	Quantity	Costs	Average c	Quantity	Costs	Average c	Quantity	Costs	Average c	Quantity	Costs	Average c
🖃 🅎 Purchase order analysis	15,00	210	14,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00
🖻 🧘 Adidas [0002]	15,00	210	14,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00
Adidas David Beckham Shorts	5,00	40	8,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00
Sales figures	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00
Adidas DB Socks - Size 4-7 [B02		170	17,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0		0,00	0	
Sales figures	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00
— <b>20</b> Total sales	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00	0,00	0	0,00
•															Þ
										F7	Print	FS Menu	ESC E	sit <b>F1</b>	Help

#### Setup

The final chapter in this manual is on the options in the Setup menu. There are four main general tables that come set up with the system. These are tables of countries, deliverers, delivery terms and delivery modes. They can be added to if you wish to do so but generally we have not found this to be needed.

**Misc. charges codes:** This is where you can set up miscellaneous charges codes to be used in item reception. This includes cost codes that are linked to general ledger codes such as delivery charges, early settlement discount etc.

Reason codes: This is where you can set up reason codes to be used in sales orders and quotes.

**General settings:** This is where you can configure settings relating to the purchase orders module. This includes the process flow throughout the module such as in respect to which period in time quantities get posted to inventory, which purchase order description to be used for printing etc. It is important to note that this would usually be configured by the dk staff during implementation and should not be changed without consulting dk first.



© 2012 dk Software Ltd. All rights reserved.

Manual – Purchase Orders

This publication is intended for instructional purposes only and its contents can change without notice. dk Software Ltd. is not responsible for any errors or misrepresentations that might be found in the file. Any replication of this publication is prohibited, as well as all public distribution or transmission of any kind, unless with a written permission from dk Software Ltd.

dk Software Ltd.

www.dksoftware.co.uk